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Sir Bob Kerslake
Permanent Secretary DCLG & Head of Civil Service
Department for Communities & Local Government
Eland House
Bressenden Place
London  SW1E 5DU

10th April 2014

Dear Sir Bob

Thank you for your letter dated 4 April 2014 informing me of the Secretary of State’s 
decision to cause an inspection to take place in exercise of his powers under section 10 of 
the Local Government Act 1999. As you may already be aware, I have now met with the 
inspectors from PwC, and they have commenced their work. May I assure you of the 
Council’s intention to co-operate fully with PWC.

I am writing to seek further information in respect of the Secretary of State’s decision. For 
the sake of clarity and brevity I will simply list the points that arise.

(1) You explain that in reaching the decision to exercise his section 10 powers the 
Secretary of State has had regard to “certain documents” received by the Department 
which concern governance in Tower Hamlets. Could you please provide me with copies of 
these documents.

(2) Your letter refers to “allegations about poor governance and possible fraud”. I assume 
that these allegations are part of the basis for the Secretary of State’s decision. Could you 
set out (a) the specifics of the allegations concerning poor governance explaining in each 
case what it is that is said to have constituted the poor governance and when the events 
relied on took place; and (b) the same details in respect of the allegations of fraud.

(3) You say that in reaching the decision to exercise his powers under section 10 of the 
1999 Act, the Secretary of State had regard to matters referred to in the BBC Panorama 
programme broadcast on 31 March 2014. Could you identify which matters referred to in 
the programme the Secretary of State took into account.

(4) Your letter states the terms of reference which the Secretary of State has given to 
PwC (as also set out in Helen Edwards’ letter to PwC dated 4 April 2014, see the fourth 
paragraph of that letter). The terms of reference are broadly stated; PwC have been 
instructed to inspect generally in respect of the period from 25 October 2010 to date, and 
instructed “in particular” to investigate “the authority’s payment of grants and connected 
decisions; the transfer of property by the authority to third parties; spending and decisions 
of the authority in relation to publicity, and the authority’s processes and practices for 
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entering into contracts”. Under section 10(1) the power to appoint an inspector is given in 
respect of whether a best value authority has complied “… with the requirements of Part 1 
of the 1999 Act in relation to specified functions”. I would be grateful if you could explain 
the way in which the terms of reference given to PwC correspond to the Secretary of 
State’s power under section 10 of the 1999 Act. Which particular events have caused the 
Secretary of State to conclude that an inspection should be undertaken; in what respects 
have these matters caused the Secretary of State to suspect that (in the period since 
October 2010) Tower Hamlets may have failed to comply with requirements under Part 1 
of the 1999 Act; which requirements under Part 1 of the 1999 Act are the ones material for 
the purposes of the Secretary of State’s decision, and for the purposes of the inspection 
the Secretary of State has instructed PwC to undertake.

(5) You say that the Secretary of State has also passed “certain material” to the police for 
their consideration. Could you provide me with a copy of the letter (or other 
communication) sent to the police, and also identify the material that has been provided to 
the police.

May I make it clear that I make these requests only so that Tower Hamlets (a) can be 
properly informed of the reasons for the Secretary of State’s exercise of his power under 
section 10 of the 1999 Act, and the factual basis on which the decision was taken; and (b) 
can understand the scope of the inspection including how it corresponds to the section 10 
power. I confirm that information provided in response to the requests set out above will 
be used only for purposes connected with the section 10 inspection.

I would be grateful if you could provide the information requested as a matter of urgency. I 
look forward to hearing from you.

Yours sincerely

Stephen Halsey
Head of Paid Service & Corporate Director Communities, Localities & Culture
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